
 

 
Coeur d'Alene Tribe Land Acknowledgement 

 
We respectfully acknowledge that we are on the traditional land of the first people, the Coeur d’Alene, who have occupied 
the lands that include the City of Coeur d’Alene, Coeur d’Alene Lake and the Spokane River for time immemorial. The 
Schitsu’umsh are “Those who are found here” or “The discovered people” and they have been telling their story in song and 
dance for thousands of years in celebration and in hardship. We are fortunate that the Coeur d’Alenes have blessed the 
land and formed strong relationships to continue as stewards to protect and preserve the land, lake, and other resources. 
We acknowledge the Tribe’s 5 Core Values for decisions related to the land and the future of the Coeur d’Alene people. We 
are honored to learn, grow, play and live upon the traditional territory of the Coeur d’Alene Tribe and to have the opportunity 
to work together to improve our land and strengthen our communities for future generations. Time Immemorial. Present. 
Future. 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSON AGENDA 
City Hall – Conference Room #6 

December 13, 2023 
 
12:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
ROLL CALL: Burns, Emerson, Lowe, Marienau, Miller, Anderson, Sardell, Shaffer 
 
MINUTES:   **ITEM BELOW IS CONSIDERED TO BE AN ACTION ITEM** 
November 15, 2023 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 
 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS:    **ITEMS BELOW ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ACTION ITEMS* 

• Government Way Corridor & Questionnaire Discussion  

• HREI Building Preservation Discussion 

• Certified Local Government (CLG) Grant Application Ideas 

• Subcommittee Reports & 2023 Work Plan Project Updates: 

o Historic Building Materials Guide, including Wood Window Research 

(Burns, Sardell and Lowe) 

o Infill Guidelines, Historic Overlay Zone, and Local Districts 
(Anderson, Miller, Burns, Marienau, Sardell, Lowe) 

o Awards/Outreach 
(Emerson, Burns, and ??) 

• City Council Presentation 

• HPC Workshop (January 24, 2024) 

• HPC Vacancy – vote to open up the application process 

 
TRACKING TIME: 
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS: 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  **ITEM BELOW IS CONSIDERED TO BE AN ACTION ITEM** 
 
ADJOURNMENT/CONTINUATION: 



 

 
Coeur d'Alene Tribe Land Acknowledgement 

 
We respectfully acknowledge that we are on the traditional land of the first people, the Coeur d’Alene, who have occupied 
the lands that include the City of Coeur d’Alene, Coeur d’Alene Lake and the Spokane River for time immemorial. The 
Schitsu’umsh are “Those who are found here” or “The discovered people” and they have been telling their story in song and 
dance for thousands of years in celebration and in hardship. We are fortunate that the Coeur d’Alenes have blessed the 
land and formed strong relationships to continue as stewards to protect and preserve the land, lake, and other resources. 
We acknowledge the Tribe’s 5 Core Values for decisions related to the land and the future of the Coeur d’Alene people. We 
are honored to learn, grow, play and live upon the traditional territory of the Coeur d’Alene Tribe and to have the opportunity 
to work together to improve our land and strengthen our communities for future generations. Time Immemorial. Present. 
Future. 
 

 
Motion by                    , seconded by                     , 
to continue meeting to                ,      , at      p.m.; motion carried unanimously. 
Motion by                    ,seconded by                   , to adjourn meeting; motion carried unanimously.  



 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MINUTES:      November 15, 2023                Page 1 
 

 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
MINUTES 

November 15, 2023 
City Hall – Conference Room #6 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:   STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
Walter Burns, Chair    Hilary Patterson, Community Planning Director 
Sandy Emerson     Traci Clark, Admin. Assistant 
Shannon Sardell (on Teams)     
Richard Shaffer                                                     Kiki Miller, Council Liaison 
Anneliese Miller, Vice Chair    
          
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  
 
Ali Marienau  
Tyler Douglas Lowe 
Anne Anderson  
 
 
12:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER:  
 
MINUTES:   **ITEM BELOW IS CONSIDERED TO BE AN ACTION ITEM** 
 
October 25, 2023 
 
Motion by Commissioner Miller, seconded by Commissioner Emerson, to approve the minutes for  
October 25, 2023. Motion carried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
None.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  
 
Ms. Patterson commented she did not have a chance to contact the Tribe before today’s meeting. The 
committee was thinking about Jill Wagner with the Coeur d’Alene Tribe in the Cultural Department as a 
possible commission member since we have not had any luck to date with getting in touch with Dixie 
Stensgar.  
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Chairman Burns introduced Mr. Doug Harro who is an archeologist and a neighbor who lives in the 
Garden District. He indicated that Mr. Harro’s archaeology expertise is a skill that the commission does 
not have on the board. He was invited to come to this meeting to see what the Historic Preservation 
Commission discusses and see if he might be interested in a future position on the commission.  
 
Mr. Harro states he lives at 614 Foster Avenue and he has lived there since 2001.  
 
 Chairman Burns welcomed Mr. Shaffer as the newest Historic Preservation Commission member.  
 



 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MINUTES:      November 15, 2023                Page 2 
 

Mr. Shaffer introduced himself and told the commission he has been in the hospitality business, was born 
and raised in Strousberg PA. He works for the Magnuson Family. He volunteers, does tourism, works in 
hospitality, and works on recreational committees. He has worked for the Idaho Tribal Council as 
Chairman, (he was with them for 6 years), Parks and Rec., he had met Governor Andrews at the time. It 
had a very positive experience for him in Wallace for a small town. He has a home now in the Fort 
Grounds, a house in Downtown Wallace and a Cabin in the Mountains.  
 
Chairman Burns asked Mr. Shaffer what his experience with the Wallace Historic Preservation Committee 
was like. 
 
Mr. Shaffer stated he does tours and whatever it takes to get people off the highway. He goes throughout 
North Idaho, and into Montana. He wants the people to play and stay. He has worked with the State 
Parks, the Tribe on the construction of the Trails of the Coeur d’Alene and Route of the Hiwatha. He has 
been focused on how tourism and history benefit the economy, including the museums and the mine 
tours. He also takes part in the Sixth Street Melodrama and Theater.  
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS:    **ITEMS BELOW ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ACTION ITEMS** 
 
Commissioner Sardell did not have any new info on wood window research.  

                          
                        Council Liaison Miller wanted to know if the commission came up with a list of people who wanted to be 

involved with the Government Way corridor and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
                        Chairman Burns stated that Ms. Thurman was at last month’s commission meeting, and she will be       

putting together a neighborhood meeting in January. Chairman Burns states he will make sure that 
Council Liaison Miller will get an invite to that meeting.  
 
Commissioner Emerson would like to make sure someone is following up on getting names from the 
County Assessor’s office. Chairman Burns responded that he believed Ms. Thurman volunteered to do 
that.     
 
Commissioner Sardell has produced a historic design guideline questionnaire to distribute to the 
neighborhood to get a sense of their level of support to form a historic overlay district. 
 
She read from her draft document, which states, 

 
“Need a short write up about the Historic Commission’s concerns regarding the demolition of 
historic resources within neighborhoods and what is lost when these resources are removed. The 
HRB is interested in understanding more from the resident of these neighborhoods and if there is 
interest and trying to protect the character of the places that we live.”  
  
Would you support guidelines/regulations governing new construction in your 
neighborhood?  

o Setbacks consistent with surrounding properties and in conformance with city 
codes 

o Building massing that respects privacy and shared property lines  
o Garage locations on the alley or side yard.  
o Roof forms that are consistent with historic styles and surrounding properties.    

               
  Coeur d’Alene City Code currently has no review of demolition permits for buildings that could be 

considered historic (more than 50 years old. Would you support a review process for demolition 
permits and/or new construction in established neighborhoods older than 50 years old?   

 Clarify process right now 
 Is it an old building?  



 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MINUTES:      November 15, 2023                Page 3 
 

 How do we define demolition  
 Link to current demolition permit process  
 What changes in permit if any?  

 
Less enforceable because most of these items are considered design criteria but make 
clear it is for new construction.  
 
New homes build in the general built style of historic homes that exist throughout the 
neighborhood. (If so, it would be better to tease of the characteristics that are important rather 
than be so general. Is it front porches, massing, setbacks, opening size, siding choices). 
 
Visually distinct exterior design that separates the old and historic construction from the new (in 
terms of Historic Preservation this is best practice).  
 
Siding material and shape consistent with other homes in the neighborhood.  
 
Maintaining historic window appearance (guidelines about proportion and locations). 

     
Chairman Burns asked if the commission wanted to include a question in the survey to gauge 
neighborhood support for limiting homes from being exactly the same for instance, in the Garden District, 
there are many newer homes that are basically identical.  
 
Commissioner Sardell commented that yes, some houses will have the same floor plan or foot print 
because they were developed by a developer, but they may have different figurations of front porches, or 
bay windows or styles. We could ask planning and development staff how enforceable that could be.  
 
Ms. Patterson stated that would be very hard to enforce. If it was a new development with design 
standards, it could be limited. But it would be very hard in an established neighborhood to say you can 
only have this particular style for new construction.  
 
Commissioner Emerson wanted to know about demolition permits and if the city gets involved with the 
disposal of the materials, such as hazardous materials. It becomes interesting to us is because the 
museum actually called about some of the older houses. They have elements such as the front door that 
maybe the museum might would like to know about before they are torn down as part of the demolition 
permits. Is there a way to notify the commission if there is a historic element on a building that is going to 
be demolished?  
 
Ms. Patterson clarified that Commissioner Anderson suggested that we have some kind of informational 
document attached to the demolition permits. The information guide that is attached to the demolition 
permit would have some guidelines if you are going forward with the demolition there would be some 
entities to contact for example, Habitat for Humanity, the Museum and others who might be interested in 
your historic doors or window. It would be an informational attachment on the permit. 
 
Chairman Burns asked if there are an architectural salvage business in Spokane.  
 
Commissioner Emerson answered Spokane Demolition Service is very good at knowing what they are 
doing.  
 
Chairman Burns reminded the commission that the demolition permit process it is just over the counter. 
You just walk in and get one. There is no review. The building can just be torn down. There is no 
requirement about what would be put in its place.  
 
Council Liaison Miller asked if there was a way to dispose of hazardous materials.  
 
Ms. Patterson stated that the demolition permit probably includes documentation on what to do if there 



 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MINUTES:      November 15, 2023                Page 4 
 

was any hazardous material Regarding commissioner’s Sardell question, the commission should consider 
asking the neighborhood if they would support having this commission review demolition permits. The 
State Statues allow to a Historic Preservation Commission to do a demolition review and issue a 
certificate of appropriateness for local historic districts. That would be if we were creating a historic district 
under the State Statues. As proposed, the historic overlay process can be more ala carte where the 
neighborhood can pick and choose things from that, or we come up with our own if the neighborhoods opt 
in and the council will ultimately approve it. It would then get into our zoning code as an overlay. This one 
question needs to be clarified a little more, as it could confuse the people on what does ”demolition 
review” mean? what is the role of the commission on what they are reviewing a demolition permit and or 
new construction? We need to clarify different options, so they can say yes or no. 
 
Chairman Burns stated the reason we are asking for the neighborhood’s input, we do not want to put any 
limitations on existing homes. He doesn’t think anyone would want to accept that.  
 
Ms. Patterson responded that the exception might be if the home owners would be doing a demolition 
permit and building an ADU, an attached garage or large addition.  
 
Council Liaison Miller stated that the commission is on the right track with the questionnaire. This is what 
the neighborhood needs to decide. This is up to the people that live there.   
 
Mr. Harro asked how does the demolition process work, Is it the same for partial and full demolitions, and 
interior only demolitions?  
 
Ms. Patterson answered the permit is both. She has seen just a kitchen be remodeled and the 
homeowners have pulled a demolition permit. We might want to clarify that with the neighbors to better 
understand what is being demolished and what level of review they would find acceptable.  
 
Council Liaison Miller suggested having a link to the demolition permit so people can educate themselves 
on what exists today with the demolition permit process, explain here is what we are suggesting that you 
could consider if there is a district formed, and ask them what changes they would like to see with this 
permit if any?  
 
Ms. Patterson stated that the commission should determine if it would like to have demolition review 
authority for an outbuilding (garage), if it would review demolition permits for full or partial demolitions of a 
main residence or a commercial use, and possible outbuildings. The questionnaire should make those 
options clear.  
 
Subcommittee Reports & 2023 Work Plan Project Updates: 

o Historic Building Materials Guide, including Wood Window Research 

(Burns, Sardell and Lowe) 

o Infill Guidelines, Historic Overlay Zone, and Local Districts 
(Anderson, Miller, Burns, Marienau, Sardell, Lowe) 

o Awards/Outreach 
(Emerson, Burns, and ??) 

 
 
Certified Local Government (CLG) Grant Application Ideas 

• Historic Resources Style Guide with illustrations 

• Training for local contractors on wood window restoration 



 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MINUTES:      November 15, 2023                Page 5 
 

• Thematic Survey of the Government Way corridor and ABC streets district for local historic 
overlay 

• Thematic Survey of the Mill workers homes for NRHP for thematic nomination 

• Individual Nomination of the Johnson House for NRHP 

• Thematic Survey of Farragut buildings that have been relocated to Coeur d’Alene 

• Thematic Survey of railroad-related buildings in the city  

 
Chairman Burns commented on grant application ideas that have been discussed previously. Ultimately it 
will be up to the commission to make a decision and vote upon neighborhood needs the grant funds. The 
Johnson House could be taken off the list at this point and look at this as having it be eligible for an 
award. The homeowner’s hope to turn it into a bed and breakfast, since it’s so close to downtown it is kind 
of in a threatened area. They are restoring the exterior and interior they are doing a very good job. We 
would like to support and recognize their efforts.  

Ms. Patterson stated that the Government Way would be very labor intensive and cost would be high. It 
would be similar with the County Historic Preservation Commission when they worked on the Garden 
District survey.  

Chairman Burns agreed that the Garden District survey was a huge project and the value and the request 
for CLG grant funds would be over $13,000.   

Commissioner Sardell stated she could find out the cost of local contractor’s wood window restoration 
such as wood shop. She thinks it might be around $10,000. The surveys from Government Way or the 
Mill Worker Homes any one of those survey’s is going to be dependent on how you set the scope of work. 
If we can get Mr. Kirk Huffaker involved it might be cheaper if we have a smaller district. The Mill Worker 
Homes would be a smaller district. Individual nominations are at least $5,000. Right now, I have two that 
we are trying to get prices on for Idaho Heritage Trust and they are running north of $5,000eachWe are 
trying to get three (3) historic theaters on the national register. This will run probably around $7,500 for 
the survey work. The Railroad buildings this would be very interesting, it could link into trails, privately 
owned building. These surveys really give the Historic Preservation Commission a better understating of 
what is actually out there so we can encourage people to do national nominations.   

Chairman Burns stated at the subcommittee meeting that the Farragut buildings had already been 
identified to some extent. He will look into this as a future project. The Railroad presentation was great. 
He was focused on the railroads that ran between the parks. It ran from Spokane to Coeur d’Alene, and 
up to Spirit Lake, ID. Maybe Jon Mueller would be willing to share his presentation on the Railroad 
buildings with the commission. Is there a direction that the committee would like to narrow the list down 
further and put something in front of SHPO?  

Ms. Patterson stated there needs to be a time and cash match, and we need to remember that the 
commission has no budget. If something requires a lot of time and we do not have it, we would be looking 
at having to do some kind of cash match on a bigger survey for example the Government Way Corridor 
project. 

Chairman Burns stated he will speak with Evie with the Johnson House to see if they are interested in an 
individual nomination.  

Mr. Patterson asked regarding the workshop training in Florida and if Commissioner Lowe was still going 
to attend with his crew. That was discussed at the last commission meeting with Commissioner Sardell.  

Commissioner Sardell replied that she has not spoken with Commissioner Lowe regarding the training. 
He might still be out of the Country on active duty.  

Ms. Patterson asked about the Historic Resource Guide idea for CLG grant funding.  



 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MINUTES:      November 15, 2023                Page 6 
 

Commissioner Sardell stated that yes, it does fit with the guidelines, with a potential project, but the cost 
might hinder us.  

Chairman Burns states his experience with SHPO is much more national register oriented as opposed to 
some of the other things that fall within their purview.  

Commissioner Emerson likes the idea of the Johnson House as two parts. One as a nominee, for the 
Heart of History award and putting it on the National Register of Historic Places.  

Commissioner Sardell stated if we established some boundaries of the Government Way historic area 
that were more realistic, we could limit the scope of work to the most significant historic areas, that would 
help reduce the cost of the survey work and make it more affordable.  

Ms. Patterson pointed out with any of the surveys that there will be a delay for when it happens. If the 
commission applies and they award us money, we will not be starting until 2025 and it will not be done 
until 2026.  

Chairman Burns states that SHPO gave the committee a 3-year grant rather than 2-year grant which 
should give us more time, although the way they handled the last one, we actually ended up with less 
time because of the delay. Hopefully they will be more efficient with it going forward.  

Commissioner Sardell stated there are three (3) options to consider for the CLG grant: 1. Government 
Way survey. 2. Johnson House Nominations. 3. Training local contractors for wood window and door 
repair (at least to talk to them about a window workshop).  

Ms. Patterson stated the Commission will need to go to City Council to get approval to apply for the CLG 
Grant funds. Applications are due to SHPO by the end of January of 2024.  

Motion by Commissioner Emerson, seconded by commissioner Miller, to make a decision on wood 
windows, Government Way, and the Johnson House as the top three priorities to evaluate for the CLG 
grant funds. Motion carried. 

 

COMMISSION COMMENTS: 
 
                          Commissioner Emerson received a phone call from the Garden District Researcher saying she was 

researching the history of the neighborhood and asked if he and others could help provide historical 
knowledge about something notable about, such as if a mayor had resided in the home. 

                           
Council Liaison Miller mentioned that she would track down the historic map of the downtown 
neighborhoods and that she had spoken with two people that remember that it had existed, but didn’t 
have a copy. Roger Hudson’s wife, Leigh was the one that she thought had the copy and she does not. If 
it did exist, she does not know where to find the photos now.  

  
Chairman Burns wanted to know if the commission was on schedule with the consultant Kirk Huffaker 
regarding the preliminary draft of the Garden District Nomination to have it submitted to SHPO by the first 
of the year.  

Ms. Patterson was going to check on the status of the draft and report back to the commission.  

Chairman Burns commented on the Human Rights building and stated he was concerned about it after 
hearing about the condition of the brick. It was discussed as part of the historic railroad buildings. 

Commissioner Emerson did speak with Bill Greenwood and he stated he had requested an engineering   
study which came back and the numbers are pretty high to restore it to bring it up to code. There is some 
question as to whether it’s worth saving according to the council members.    

Council Liaison Miller stated that it just had a roof repair issue done. It is not out of code compliance but 
you cannot have any upgrade functions done to it because everything there is too old. It is ok in its 
current capacity, but it cannot by improved for anything else.   



 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MINUTES:      November 15, 2023                Page 7 
 

 Commissioner Emerson stated that the cost of shoring up the bricks on the exterior and the interior             
 construction was very expensive. 

 Chairman Burns stated it is a very important historical building for the city.  

 Council Liaison Miller stated that the study that was done by engineering going to be done, the city was      
 going to use the building for a different city purpose. That was the discussion for the cost prohibitive            
 conversation. If something is going to happen to it. If it is going to be kept for its existing purpose but to       
  restore it or to convert it to a city building that is the issue.  

Commissioner Sardell requested that the commission receive a copy of the report on the Human Rights 
Building to review.  

Commissioner Emerson would like to go on record that the commission would like to preserve the Human 
Rights Building if at all possible.  

Motion by Commissioner Emerson, seconded by Sardell to add this as an agenda item for the next 
meeting to discuss preservation of the Human Rights Building. Motion carried.  

Chairman Burns discussed having a workshop in January to start the commissions 2024 goals.  

 

CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION:  
Council Liaison Miller will let the Mayor know that the commission will be doing a presentation sometime 
in the Spring and will have it put on the agenda.  

Chairman Burns suggested having the workshop first and put together an outline. He also suggested 
turning the regular commission meeting in January into a longer workshop format. 

Motion by Commissioner Emerson, seconded by Commissioner Miller to replace the regular January 
Historic Preservation Commission meeting with a workshop in January. Motion carried.  

 
TRACKING TIME: 
Chairman Burns reminded the commission to track their time and send it to Commissioner Anderson. 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  **ITEM BELOW IS CONSIDERED TO BE AN ACTION ITEM** 
The Commission requested the following items to be discussed:  

- Government Way Questionnaire 
- HREI building preservation 
- CLG Grant Ideas 
- City Council Presentation 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion by Commissioner Miller seconded, Commissioner Emerson, to adjourn the meeting. Motion 
carried.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:15 p.m. 
 
Submitted by Traci Clark, Administrative Assistant  
 
  
 




